
 
 

 
A G E N D A  

PLANNING COMMISSION 
August 21, 2023 at 6:30 PM 

 
Call to Order 

Consideration of Minutes 

1. Minutes of July 17, 2023 

Disclosures and Recusals 

Old Business 

New Business 

2. MINOR SUBDIVISION/VARIANCE: requesting two single family lots -109/111 
Jones Ave -40003 13021-Zone R-2 -Thomas A. Smith III.  

Adjournment 

Standing Items 

Adjournment 

 

- Page 1 -



 

 

  

 
PLANNING COMMISSION                                             CITY MANAGER  
Julie A. Livingston                                        Shawn Gillen 
Robert J. Matkowski 
Elaine McGruder 
S. Michelle Nooney                                                                                                            COMMUNITY DEVELOPMEN DIRECTOR 
Whitley Reynolds              George Shaw  
Marie Rodriguez          
Anthony Turpin                                         CITY ATTORNEY    CITY ATTORNEY   

                                         Edward M. Hughes
                                                                                                                      

 
Planning Commission Meeting 

MINUTES 
July 17, 2023 

 
Chair Whitley Reynolds called the July 17, 2023, Tybee Island Planning Commission meeting to 
order. Commissioners present were Marie Rodriguez, Elaine McGruder, Julie Livingston, 
Robert Matkowski, Anthony Turpin and Michelle Nooney. 
Consideration of Minutes: 
Chair Whitley Reynolds asked for consideration of the May 15, 2023, meeting minutes. Julie 
Livingston made a motion to approve. Elaine McGruder seconded. The vote to approve was 
unanimous. 
Disclosures/Recusals: 
Chair Whitley Reynolds asked if there were any Disclosures or Recusals. There were none. 
Old Business: 
Chair Whitley Reynolds asked if there was any old business. There was none. 
 
New Business: 
SITE PLAN: requesting office for A-Step Above construction, LLC -103 Butler Ave.-
40004 02004 -Zone C-2 -Tony Lord. 
George Shaw stated the applicant would like to remodel the building on site for a new office and add 
a new storage, warehouse building. He also stated that the property is in the C-2 zone so this use is 
fine. The back half of the lot is split with the inland cottage character area. So as you’re looking at the 
site plan the one thing you can consider is whether the development is of a scale and mass to be 
compatible and consistent with the character area. Staff recommends approval. Bob Matkowski 
asked about the status of the drainage. George Shaw stated our engineer, and the applicants 
engineer have a verbal agreement the concept is going to work. Bob Matkowski asked how 
pedestrian movement is going to be enhanced. George Shaw stated it’s not hindering any pedestrian 
movement the sidewalk will stay. Mark Boswell, 103 Nassau Drive approached the planning 
commission and stated he will be the engineer of record and will answer any questions. He stated the 
building does not have to be thirty feet, the owner is willing to do fifteen or twenty. Tony Lord, 161 
Ropemaker Lane approached the Planning Commission and stated we are in the best interest of Tybee 
and would welcome any recommendations. Anthony Turpin asked if he had experience with Allen’s 
factory. Tony Lord stated he has three contenders for the building, and this is just a proposal 
templet for what he wants the building to look like. Elaine asked if fifteen- or twenty-foot height 
would be ok with him. Tony Lord stated we would certainly be willing to bring it down, maybe 
fourteen to fifteen feet would be a fair number. Julie Livingston asked if he foresees any traffic 
problems coming in and out of Butler Avenue. Tony Lord stated he does not see any traffic 
problems; his fleet consists of normal size trucks and there will be only one way in and one way out. 
Anthony Turpin asked Mark Boswell if he has taken into the account with the drainage plan. Mark 
Boswell stated yes it has. Bob Matkowski made a motion to continue until the drainage report is 
received. Anthony Turpin seconded.   
 
 

 

- Page 2 -

Item #1.



 

 

 
 
Voting in favor were Bob Matkowski and Anthony Turpin. Voting against were Marie 
Rodriguez, Michelle Nooney, Julie Livingston and Elaine McGruder. Motion to continue 
failed 2-4.  
Elaine McGruder made a motion to approve with a condition that the storage building be no higher 
than fifteen feet. Michelle Nooney seconded. Voting in favor were Michelle Nooney, Elaine 
McGruder and Anthony Turpin. Voting against were Marie Rodriguez, Julie Livingston and 
Bob Matkowski. Motion was tied 3-3. Chair Whitley Reynolds voted in favor. Motion to approve 
passed 4-3. 
 
VARIANCE: requesting build fence two feet higher than eight foot allowance -1514 
Lovell Ave.-40008 07001 -Zone C-1 -Judy & Andy Hughes. 
George Shaw stated the applicants purchased a house that backs up to Nicki’s 1979. They are asking 
for a taller fence than eight feet which is what our ordinance allows. Staff recommends approval. 
Julie Livingston asked if there are any fences on this Island as high as ten or twelve feet 
Commercial or residential. George Shaw stated he does not know of any. Michelle Nooney asked 
if we approve of this could the design be a part of it. George Shaw stated yes, you can always make a 
suggestion. Anthony Turpin stated since there is a fence on the south side of the property that could 
be used as a guide for the height of this fence. Bob Matkowski stated yes that would be a good 
guide, so it does not exceed the fence on either side. Andy Hughes, 502 Jackson Blvd. stated we had 
numerous issues like cigarette butts and other items being tossed over the fence. We approached the 
owner of Nicki’s about this and he was difficult to deal with. He put a screen on the top of the fence 
which stopped items coming over the fence. Then we looked into getting a copy of our plat and 
realized we owned six point nine feet of his back deck. We had a Lawyer send him a letter to remove 
his items from our property, which was two sheds and part of his deck. Now we want to put the new 
fence on our property line and want to do some sound proofing and more height to take care of any 
problems. Julie Livingston stated she does not see a hardship in this, but she does see an 
inconvenience. She also asked isn’t it the property only not the surrounding area that constitutes the 
hardship. George Shaw stated he considered the hardship is the bar they have behind them and that 
is only specific to this property. Julie Livingston stated she is picturing this becoming an issue 
throughout the island. Elaine McGruder made a motion to approve with a condition that the fence 
be two feet higher than the eight-foot allowance. Anthony Turpin seconded. Voting in favor were 
Elaine McGruder and Anthony Turpin. Voting against were Marie Rodriguez, Michelle 
Nooney, Julie Livingston and Bob Matkowski. Motion to approve failed 2-4. Anthony Turpin 
made a motion to approve with a condition that the height of the fence to align with the fence on the 
southern side of property. Elaine McGruder seconded. Voting in favor were Elaine McGruder, 
Bob Matkowski and Anthony Turpin. Voting against were Marie Rodriguez, Michelle 
Nooney and Julie Livingston. Motion tied 3-3. Chair Whitley Reynolds voted in favor. Motion 
to approve passed 4-3. George Shaw went to measure the fence on the southern side and it was at 
ten feet. 
 
 
 
Adjournment: 7:30pm 
Lisa L. Schaaf 

- Page 3 -

Item #1.



- Page 4 -

Item #2.



- Page 5 -

Item #2.



- Page 6 -

Item #2.



- Page 7 -

Item #2.



- Page 8 -

Item #2.



- Page 9 -

Item #2.



- Page 10 -

Item #2.



- Page 11 -

Item #2.



- Page 12 -

Item #2.



- Page 13 -

Item #2.



- Page 14 -

Item #2.



- Page 15 -

Item #2.



- Page 16 -

Item #2.



- Page 17 -

Item #2.



- Page 18 -

Item #2.



- Page 19 -

Item #2.



- Page 20 -

Item #2.



- Page 21 -

Item #2.


	Top
	Item #1.	Minutes of July 17, 2023
	20230717_PC_MINUTES

	Item #2.	MINOR SUBDIVISION/VARIANCE: requesting two single family lots -109/111 Jones Ave -40003 13021-Zone R-2 -Thomas A. Smith III.
	SUB-VAR-109-111 JONES AV.

	Bottom

